
Mission: Provide quality person-centred health care services to our community 

WRH VALUES 

We respectfully acknowledge that the Windsor Regional Hospital occupies the traditional, ancestral 

and contemporary lands of the Niswi Ishkodewan Anishinaabeg: The Three Fires Confederacy 

(Ojibwe, Odawa, and Potawatomi). We acknowledge the land and the surrounding waters for 

sustaining us and we are committed to protecting and restoring these lands and waters from 

environmental degradation. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Thursday, January 6, 2022 
VIA ZOOM: 1700 hours 

Windsor, Ontario 

 (ZOOM link is included with the meeting invitation) 

TAB TIME ACTION 

1. CALL TO ORDER (Paniccia) 1700 

2. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

(Paniccia) 

1702 

3. PREVIOUS MINUTES:

December 9, 2021 (Paniccia) Tab A 1703 MOTION 

(approve) 

4. REPORT OF THE PRESIDENT & CEO (Musyj)

Will be live presentation 

1705 FYI 

5. CNE REPORT (Riddell) (verbal) 1730 

6. SCHULICH REPORT – (Jacobs) 1740 FYI 

7. FINANCIAL PRESENTATION – (Allen) Tab B 1745 MOTION 

(accept) 

8. CONSENT AGENDA:

Finance/Audit & Resources: December 20, 2021 &

Operating Results (Allen)

Tab C 1755 

MOTION 

(accept) 

9. CORRESPONDENCE/PRINTED MATTER:

 Media Report – FYI only (Paniccia) Tab D 1800 FYI 

10. BOARD MEMBER QUESTIONS, COMMENTS OR

NOTICES OF MOTIONS (Paniccia) 1805 

11. DATE OF NEXT REGULAR BOARD MEETING:

Thursday, February 3, 2022 – ZOOM

1810 FYI 



12. ADJOURNMENT (Paniccia) 1810 MOTION 

REGRETS ONLY TO dawn.sutherland@wrh.on.ca, or (519) 254-5577 X52517 

HAPPY BIRTHDAY 

Dr. Maher Sabalbal 

mailto:dawn.sutherland@wrh.on.ca


 

 
T

A
B

 A
 



Board of Directors – December 9, 2021 Page 1 
 

 
 

MINUTES of the BOARD OF DIRECTORS meeting held on Thursday, December 9, 2021, 17:00 hours, 

via ZOOM, live streamed on YouTube. 

 

PRESENT VIA ZOOM:  
Anthony Paniccia, Chair  

Genevieve Isshak  Dan Wilson  Dr. Wassim Saad (ex-officio, non-voting) 

Paul Lachance   Patricia France  David Musyj (ex-officio, non-voting) 

Michael Lavoie   Laura Copat  Karen Riddell (ex-officio, non-voting) 

Penny Allen   Mary Dawson  Dr. Larry Jacobs (ex-officio, non-voting) 

Ian McLeod   Cynthia Bissonnette Dr. Maher Sabalbal (ex-officio, non-voting) 

  

STAFF VIA ZOOM: 
Executive Committee 

 

REGRETS 

Dr. Laurie Freeman 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER: 
The meeting was called to order at 1700 hours with Mr. Paniccia presiding as Chair and Ms. 

Sutherland recording the minutes. 

   

2. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST: 

None declared. 

 

3. PREVIOUS MINUTES: 

The minutes of the November 4, 2021 Board meeting had been previously circulated. 

 

MOVED by Ms. P. France, SECONDED by Ms. P. Allen and CARRIED 

THAT the minutes of the November 4, 2021 Board of Directors meeting be approved. 

 

The Chair provided a couple of reminders: 

 The WRH Foundation Festive 50/50 Mega Money raffle draw is live and tickets can purchased 

on the WRH website. 

 Donation of toys to pediatric unit – thank you for all the generosity however these toys would 

be better served to the Hiatus House or CAS.  To make a donation to the pediatric unit please 

visit the WRH website. 

 

Thank you to the staff for continuing to support our community during this pandemic.  Thank you to 

our fellow partners for making this year as successful as it could be.  Also, thank you to the community 

for their ongoing support.  Please get vaccinated and/or book your booster if eligible.  Have a safe and 

happy holiday.   

 

4. REPORT FROM THE PRESIDENT & CEO: 

Mr. Musyj thanked everyone for attending tonight’s meeting.  Highlights from his report are as 

follows: 



Board of Directors – December 9, 2021 Page 2 
 

i) Provincial trends of COVID+ patients:  rolling 7 day average continues to increase with 1290 new 

cases today in Ontario.  99.9% of these cases are the Delta variant, Omicron has not taken effect 

as of yet.   

ii) W/E Trends - the weekly cases show that W/E is at 114 per 100,000 of our population and our 

positivity rate is just under 6%.  Our weekly case counts have gone down a bit however this is 

trending back up based on today’s results.  W/E is in the top 4 in the Province.  Mr. Musyj spoke 

of where we were last year at this time.  Last year at this time our case counts were running at   

67.3 positive cases per day and we are now running at 68.9 today, which is slightly above.  

Therefore, the issue becomes what is going to happen over the next few weeks with respect to our 

case counts and where are they going to go. 

iii) Vaccination Rates and Efficacy – 84.665% of people 5+ in Ontario have received at least one dose 

and 80.147% of people 5+ in Ontario are fully vaccinated.  However we still have over 70% of 

our inpatients who are unvaccinated.  The Science Table report that was just released stated that 

unvaccinated people have a 5-fold higher risk of symptomatic COVID-19 disease, a 13-fold higher 

risk of being in the hospital and a 23-fold higher risk of being in the ICU compared to those fully 

vaccinated.  As our Public Medical Officer of Health pointed out today, unfortunately there are 

still unvaccinated people in our community dying from COVID-19. 

iv) Rapid antigen tests – Mr. Musyj explained the “swiss cheese” or layered approach  You need all 

of these things to be lined up to prevent spread and all of these factors play an important role.  

WRH has done most if not all of these things.  This was most recently articulated today by the 

Science Table in their report on rapid antigen tests for voluntary screen testing and making them 

more widely available to the community. WRH started this for our staff back in August.  There 

have been more than a dozen cases where a staff member had a young person in their home who 

at the time was not eligible for vaccination who became positive and this was discovered by the at 

home rapid antigen testing kit.  As a result, this prevented the child from going back to school and 

spreading COVID-19 any further and also preventing the staff member from coming into the 

hospital and spreading it.  Once the rapid test is positive, the staff and family members then go to 

the AC and get a PCR test.  The rapid kits produce immediate, accurate results and are a useful 

tool for detecting COVID-19 early and isolating infected people before they have a chance to 

spread the virus.  Dr. Saad explained CT values and what they mean in PCR testing. We 

recommend to our staff to test 2 -3 times per week.  If you do this frequently you are most likely 

going to catch a positive.   

 

Ms. Riddell presented local ESC statistics as of today’s date: 

 22 active COVID-19 cases in house, 5 of which are in the ICU.  6 of these cases are fully 

vaccinated (14 days post second dose) and 3 are partially vaccinated (14 days post first dose 

or 0-13 days posts second dose).  13 are not vaccinated.  73% of our current cases in house 

are partially or unvaccinated.  This data is published on a daily basis. 

 Overall bed capacity has been challenging over the last couple of weeks. WRH has added 35 

Med/Surg beds and 5 Mental Health beds.  Capacity today is running at 90% and the majority 

of the COVID-19 cases are at the Met Campus.  We cohort ICU cases at MET to preserve 

trauma, cardiac, renal, neurosurgery and vascular capacity at the Ouellette Campus.  

 ED volumes are trending at approximately 120-130 daily at each site with a 20% admission 

rate. You can see how quickly capacity at the hospital can be impacted. 

 In addition to the 22 active cases, we still have an additional 11 patients in acute care who are 

“no longer infectious”, 5 of which are in the ICU.   

  

Dr. Saad provided some information on Omicron and boosters.  There are still a lot of unknowns but 

Omicron appears to be more transmissible than Delta however it is too soon to say if it is more deadly.    

There is some preliminary data that suggests our current vaccinations, particularly with the mRNA 

vaccines, will protect against Omicron with the caveat that your immune system is boosted.  Boosters 



Board of Directors – December 9, 2021 Page 3 
 

improve your immune reaction and offer more protection.  Dr. Saad advised there are no confirmed 

local cases however there are some in the province.   

 

Mr. Musyj announced that individuals 50+ can now book their booster on the WEVax website starting 

as early as Monday, December 13th.  Vaccines for 5- 11 year olds are still available.  Walk-ins 

available for 1st and 2nd doses other than children 5- 11.  UK is projecting Omicron will surpass Delta 

over the next few weeks.  Again, we appreciate the community support and the vaccination efforts.  

There could be changes coming with respect to vaccine passports.   

 

Mr. Musyj wished the board members and the community a happy and safe holiday. Please adhere to 

public health measures and rules.   

 

5. REPORT FROM SCHULICH: 

 Dr. Jacobs referred to his written report and provided the following highlights: 

 Medical education is going well and the Windsor Campus was able to get through the first 

semester with no blips of COVID-19 cases.    

 Received a visit from Dean Yoo on November 26th.  The agenda of that meeting was to meet 

with faculty in Windsor to recognize the amazing work that is happening in W/E with respect 

to medical education.  Over the last 10-15 years the faculty in Windsor has moved from a 

group who delivered curriculum to a group that is now developing curriculum.  This is a huge 

win for the community and very exciting as move into the development and planning for the 

new acute hospital site. 

 This is a challenging time for medical education and healthcare and as a result we are seeing 

a lot of stress and burnout.  The Windsor Campus is pleased to announce the hiring of a full-

time therapist to provide counseling to students.  This is a combined role with the Faculty of 

Nursing at the University.   

 

6. Financial Presentation & Treasurer’s Report – October 31, 2021 

Ms. Allen reported.   

 

Slide 2 – Financial Results – Hospital Operations 

 $3.3 million deficit for hospital operations year to date. 

 The net deficit after building amortization is $4,282. 

 COVID-19 unfunded but eligible expenses total $1,935 to date, ineligible total $1,740. 

 Unfunded non-ministry revenues and unearned volume funding total $7.7 million. 

 Slide 3 – Funding 

 The Ministry has now confirmed that both Q1 and Q2 incremental expenses submitted will 

be funded and therefore a total of $6.2 million of this funding has been accrued.  

 For Q3 and Q4, screening cost remain eligible for funding, however incremental PPE 

 cost are no longer funded. 

 The Ministry has made PPE supplies available from the provincial stockpile at no 

 cost to hospitals. 

 

Revenue 

 Base and one time funding is $20.8 million favourable due to amounts that have been 

 accrued for known COVID-19 reimbursements.  These include the Q1 & Q2 

 incremental expenses, temporary physician payments, vaccination and assessment 

 centre funding and nursing extern funding. 



Board of Directors – December 9, 2021 Page 4 
 

 Patient Services Revenue $1,767,000 favourable – relates to uninsured patient revenue 

 from the Ministry and higher diagnostic revenues which are offset by higher medical 

 staff remuneration expense. 

 

Slide 4 – COVID-19 Impact on Expenses  

 $1.7 million year to date in extraordinary expenses, and $3.1 million in lost revenues for a 

 total of $4.8 million that is unfunded or is currently ineligible for funding. 

 Hospitals are still waiting for communications regarding treatment of lost revenues. 

Slide 5 – Expenses 

 $24 million year to date unfavourable variance in expenses, however, $29 million of the total 

 $32 million in COVID-19 expenses are confirmed/eligible for funding. 

 Drugs $2.2 unfavourable, systemic and renal drugs are funded by Ontario Health and 

 additional drug expenses in retail pharmacies are offset by recoveries. 

 Other supplies variance includes $3,561,000 additional e-Volve HIS project costs 

 due to COVID-19 delays for which we have received funding confirmation. 

 Utilities are favourable $1,097,000 year to date due to the continuing electricity  rebate. 

 

MOVED by Ms. P. Allen, SECONDED by Mr. P. Lachance and CARRIED 

THAT the report from the December 9, 2021 Financial Presentation (as of October 31, 2021) be 

accepted. 

 

7. CONSENT AGENDA: 

MOVED by Ms. P. Allen, SECONDED by Mr. I. McLeod and CARRIED 

THAT the report from the November 29, 2021 Finance/Audit & Resources Committee meeting be 

accepted. 

  

8. CORRESPONDENCE/PRINTED MATTER:  
a) Media Report – FYI only. 

 

9. BOARD MEMBER QUESTIONS, COMMENTS OR NOTICES OF MOTIONS: 
None 

 

10. NEW BUSINESS: 

None 

 

11. DATE OF NEXT REGULAR MEETING: 

Thursday, January 6, 2022, 1700 hrs VIA: ZOOM 

 

12. ADJOURNMENT: 

There being no further business to discuss, it was 

 MOVED by Mr. P. Lachance, SECONDED by  Ms. G. Isshak and CARRIED 

 THAT the December 9, 2021 Board of Directors meeting be adjourned at 1745 hours. 

 

 

 ___________________________  ____________________________ 

 Anthony Paniccia, Chair   Dawn Sutherland 

 Board of Directors    Recording Secretary 

/ds 



 

 
T

A
B

 B
 



Board of Directors Meeting 
January 6, 2022

Operating Results for the Eight Months Ending November 30, 2021



Financial Results – Hospital Operations (1,000’s of dollars)
November 30, 2021

Net Surplus/(Deficit) after building amortization ($5,504)

Current Year 

Actual Budget

$ Variance

Fav/(Unfav) 

 % Variance

Fav/(Unfav)  

Revenue 407,901$             381,671$             26,230$               6.9%

Expenses

Salaries and Wages 179,226$             172,647$             (6,579)$                (3.8%)

Employee benefits 45,236                  43,277                  (1,959)                   (4.5%)

Employee ben. - future ben. costs 1,367                    1,367                    -                             0.0%

Medical staff remuneration 42,192                  35,405                  (6,787)                   (19.2%)

Medical & Surgical supplies 27,058                  24,842                  (2,216)                   (8.9%)

Drugs 48,181                  46,581                  (1,600)                   (3.4%)

Supplies & other expenses 55,519                  46,657                  (8,862)                   (19.0%)

Long term Interest 4,632                    4,632                    -                             0.0%

Equipment lease / rental 1,734                    1,561                    (173)                      (11.1%)

Equipment amortization 7,148                    7,204                    56                         0.8%

Total Expense 412,293$             384,173$             (28,120)$              (7.3%)

Surplus / (Deficit) From Hospital Operations (4,392)$                (2,502)$                (1,890)$                

COVID-19 extraordinary operating expenses 

unfunded - eligible
3,632$                  -$                      3,632$                  

COVID-19 extraordinary operating expenses 

unfunded  - ineligible
2,466$                  -$                      2,466$                  

COVID-19 related unfunded non-ministry 

revenue loss included above
3,464$                  -$                      3,464$                  

YTD - Unearned Ministry volume funding 5,028$                  -$                      (5,028)$                

Surplus or (Deficit) / Revenue -1.08% -0.66% -0.42%



Financial Results – COVID-19 Impact
November 30, 2021

Year to Date Results include $2.5 million in 
COVID-19 extraordinary expenses which are 
ineligible for funding.  

Windsor Regional Hospital 

Funded

Unfunded 

Eligible

Unfunded 

Ineligible

Revenue

Patient Services -                      -                      2,697,222           

Recoveries -                      -                      767,212              

Total Revenue -                      -                      3,464,433           

Expense

Compensation 8,668,651           2,498,556           1,674,738           

Medical Staff Fees 4,934,824           247,605              -                      

Med. Surg. Supplies 2,696,472           9,272                  553,131              

Drugs 19,790                42                       10                       

Other supplies & expense 8,913,150           802,153              168,856              

Equipment Expenses 816,677              73,963                69,009                

Renovations 12,974                -                      -                      

Total Expense 26,062,538         3,631,591           2,465,744           

Total Operating 26,062,538$       3,631,591$         5,930,178$         

COVID-19 Revenue Loss & Expenses Year-to-Date 

November 2021



Financial Results
November 30, 2021

Year to Date Revenue
◦ Base and One-Time Funding $23.8 million favourable

◦ Amounts accrued for known COVID-19 reimbursements:

◦ $6.2M - Q1 & Q2 COVID-19 Incremental expenses

◦ $5.2M - Temporary Physician payments

◦ $9.1M - Vaccination Centre expenses

◦ $2.2M - Nursing Extern Funding

◦ $1.6M - Assessment Centre per-swab funding @ $38/swab

Preferred Accommodation and Co-Payment Revenue $2,224,000 unfavourable

Patient Services Revenue $1,618,000 favourable

Other Recoveries $1,363,000 favourable



Financial Results
November 30, 2021

Year to Date Expenses

◦ $28 million year to date unfavourable variance in expenses

◦ $29.7 million of the total $35.6 million in COVID-19 expenses are confirmed/eligible 
for funding

◦ Drugs $1.6 million unfavourable, systemic and renal drugs are funded by Ontario 
Health and additional drug expenses in retail pharmacies are offset by recoveries

◦ Other supplies $8.9 million unfavourable and includes:

◦ $3,561,000 in additional e-Volve HIS project costs due to COVID-19 delays

◦ $3,135,000 for referred out vaccination centre expenses (City of Windsor and County 
of Essex EMS)

◦ $1,730,000 for referred out cataract procedures

◦ All three of the above unfavourable expense items have offsetting funding



 

 
 

T
A

B
 C

 
 

 
 

 



Finance/Audit & Resources Committee – December 20, 2021 

 

MOTION/ACTION SHEET 
 

From The 
 

FINANCE/AUDIT & RESOURCES COMMITTEE MEETING 
General Session 

 

Monday, December 20, 2021 
 
 
THERE ARE NO RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE FINANCE/AUDIT & RESOURCES 
COMMITTEE. 
 
 



Finance/Audit & Resources Committee – December 20, 2021 

 
 
 

MINUTES from the meeting of the FINANCE/AUDIT & RESOURCES COMMITTEE (General 
Session) held on Monday, December 20, 2021 Via Zoom (following the In-Camera Session). 
 
PRESENT:        COMMUNITY MEMBERS: 
Penny Allen        Sandra Boglitch 
Dr. Laurie Freeman      Dwayne Dawson 
Paul Lachance       Trevor Chapman 
Dan Wilson        Robert Klein 
           Ramona Nordemann 
 
Anthony Paniccia, Chair of the Board 
 
REGRETS: 
Ian McLeod 
Dr. Maher Sabalbal 
 
STAFF: 
 
Mark Fathers 
Heidi Zimmer 
Kevin Marshall 
Mary Macera 
 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mrs. Allen called the meeting to order at 5:52 p.m. 
 
The proceedings were recorded by Mary Macera. 
 
2.0 APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

MOVED by Laurie Freeman, SECONDED by Trevor Chapman that the General 
Finance/Audit & Resources Committee Agenda of Monday, December 20, 2021, 
be approved. 

 
  CARRIED. 
 
3.0 CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
No “Conflict of Interest” was declared. 
 
 
 



Finance/Audit & Resources Committee – December 20, 2021 

Page Two 

 
4.0 PRESENTATIONS 
 
There were No Presentations. 
 
5.0 FOR APPROVAL / RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
5.1 Minutes of Previous Meeting – Monday, November 29, 2021 
 
 The Finance/Audit & Resources Committee Minutes of the General Meeting of Monday, 

November 29, 2021 were previously circulated to all members. 
 

MOVED by Trevor Chapman, SECONDED by Ramona Nordemann that the 
General Meeting Minutes from the Finance/Audit & Resources Committee of 
Monday, November 29, 2021 be approved. 
 
CARRIED. 

 
6.0 FOR DISCUSSION 
 
6.1  Monthly Operating Results Report – November 30, 2021 (As Appended) 
 
  Ms. Zimmer provided the following highlights: 
 

 Operating results report for the eight months ended November 30, 2021 resulted in a 
deficit of $5,504,000 ($185,000 positive Hospital Margin). 
 

 Items to note: 
 

- Operating results include a combined $35.6 million in higher costs and lost revenues 
due to COVID-19.  Ministry has confirmed that the COVID-10 expenses will be 
reimbursed through criteria applied in fiscal 2020-2021 for the first two quarters of 
fiscal year 2021-2022.  The hospital has received communication regarding criteria 
for reimbursement for the last two quarters of the fiscal year. 

- WRH has received funding confirmation from the Ministry of $16.4 million for 32 
acute medical/surgical beds and 5 acute mental health beds to be operational for 
the entire fiscal year. 

- Funding amounting to $709,800 has been received for an additional 3 acute 
medical/surgical beds to be in operation from October 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022. 

- Funding confirmation has been received for the funding of 2 critical care beds. 
- Hospital Operations – November 30, 2021 – Net Surplus/(Deficit) after building 

amortization ($5,504,000). 
- COVID-19 – year-to-date results include $2.5 million in COVID-19 extraordinary 

expenses that are ineligible for funding. 
- The financial results (as appended) will detail the year to date revenues and year 

to date expenses. 
 
 
 



Finance/Audit & Resources Committee – December 20, 2021 

Page Three 

 
6.2  Status of 2021-22 Budget Risk Items – November 30, 2021 
 

Ms. Zimmer commented that with respect to the budget risk items, so far, predicting the 
same as in the previous month. 

 
7.0 FOR INFORMATION 
 
7.1  President’s Report – December 2021 
 

Committee members are welcome to access the link provided on the meeting agenda to 
listen to Mr. Musyj’s monthly report. 

 
8.0 DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The Finance/Audit & Resources Committee will meet on Monday, January 24, 2022 at 5:00 
p.m. Via Zoom. 
 
Final comments were received by Mr. Paniccia.  On behalf of the WRH Board of Directors and Mr. 
Paniccia, congratulations to Kevin Marshall for a well deserved retirement.  Mr. Marshall has had 
a hand in everyone’s healthcare journey both at WRH and within Windsor-Essex.  He leaves a life 
long legacy behind him. 
 
As well, Happy Holidays to everyone.  It has been an extremely difficult year dealing with COVID-
19.  Enjoy with family.  As a reminder to staff at WRH, the employee assistance is available should 
anyone require it; remind coworkers, friends; if anyone is feeling stressed, please call the 
employee assistance help line.  Thank you for everything that everyone does at WRH including 
committee contributions.  Please stay safe everyone! 
 
9.0 ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mrs. Allen indicated that there was no further business. 
 

MOVED by Paul Lachance, SECONDED by Trevor Chapman that the General 
Meeting from the Finance/Audit & Resources Committee of Monday, December 
20, 2021, be adjourned at 6:09 p.m. 
 
CARRIED. 

 
 
 

____________________________________             __________________________________ 
Mrs. Penny Allen, Chair & Treasurer      Mary Macera 
FinAudit&Resources_Minutes        Recorder 
20211220 
 































 

 
T

A
B

 D
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 

 

Media Report to the Board of Directors  

DECEMBER 2021 

 
 

Health unit concerned about residents ignoring COVID-19 isolation instructions 
AM800, Dec. 1, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-concerned-about-residents-ignoring-
covid-19-isolation-instructions-1.16610205 
 
Public health officials concerned COVID burden will continue to climb during holidays 
Windsor Star, Dec. 1, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/public-health-officials-concerned-covid-burden-will-
continue-to-climb-during-holidays 
 
Despite rising hospitalizations and cases in Windsor-Essex, WECHU not imposing more 
restrictions 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 1, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/despite-rising-hospitalizations-and-cases-in-windsor-essex-wechu-
not-imposing-more-restrictions-1.5689678 
 
Health unit warns about parties as COVID-19 caseload increases 
Blackburn News, Dec. 1, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/01/health-unit-warns-parties-
covid-19-caseload-increases/ 
 
12,000 Windsor-Essex students dismissed this fall; three new school outbreaks declared 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 1, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/12-000-windsor-essex-students-dismissed-this-fall-three-new-
school-outbreaks-declared-1.5689097 
 
Just under 13 per cent of youth receive first of COVID-19 vaccine since last Thursday 
AM800, Dec. 1, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/just-under-13-per-cent-of-youth-receive-first-of-
covid-19-vaccine-since-last-thursday-1.16605524 
 
Surge in respiratory issues in local children  
CTV Windsor, Dec. 3, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/mobile/video?clipId=2336654 
 
 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-concerned-about-residents-ignoring-covid-19-isolation-instructions-1.16610205
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-concerned-about-residents-ignoring-covid-19-isolation-instructions-1.16610205
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/public-health-officials-concerned-covid-burden-will-continue-to-climb-during-holidays
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/public-health-officials-concerned-covid-burden-will-continue-to-climb-during-holidays
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/despite-rising-hospitalizations-and-cases-in-windsor-essex-wechu-not-imposing-more-restrictions-1.5689678
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/despite-rising-hospitalizations-and-cases-in-windsor-essex-wechu-not-imposing-more-restrictions-1.5689678
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/01/health-unit-warns-parties-covid-19-caseload-increases/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/01/health-unit-warns-parties-covid-19-caseload-increases/
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/12-000-windsor-essex-students-dismissed-this-fall-three-new-school-outbreaks-declared-1.5689097
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/12-000-windsor-essex-students-dismissed-this-fall-three-new-school-outbreaks-declared-1.5689097
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/just-under-13-per-cent-of-youth-receive-first-of-covid-19-vaccine-since-last-thursday-1.16605524
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/just-under-13-per-cent-of-youth-receive-first-of-covid-19-vaccine-since-last-thursday-1.16605524
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/mobile/video?clipId=2336654


Hospitality capacity issues putting a strain on Windsor-Essex healthcare 
AM800, Dec. 3, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/hospital-capacity-issues-putting-a-strain-on-windsor-
essex-healthcare-1.16620389 
 
Windsor Essex region hospitals reporting bed capacity concerns 
CBC Windsor, Dec. 3, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-hospitals-capacity-concerns-1.6272671 
 
Local agencies warn of overburdened health care system 
Windsor Star, Dec. 3, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/local-agencies-warn-of-overburdened-health-care-
system 
 
Jarvis: We’re headed for a truckload of trouble 
Windsor Star, Dec. 3, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-were-headed-for-a-truckload-of-trouble 
 
No additional restrictions for sporting events and concert venues in Windsor-Essex: WECHU 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 6, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/no-additional-restrictions-for-sporting-events-and-concert-venues-
in-windsor-essex-wechu-1.5694923 
 
ESHC pleads cooperation as COVID-19 cases rise 
Blackburn News, Dec. 4, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/04/eshc-pleads-cooperation-
covid-19-cases-rise/ 
 
Health unit identifies high risk COVID-19 exposure at Kingsville restaurant 
AM800, Dec. 3, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-identifies-high-risk-covid-19-exposure-
point-at-kingsville-restaurant-1.16621304 
 
\Possible COVID-19 exposure at OHL game 
Blackburn News, Dec. 4, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/04/possible-covid-19-exposure-
ohl-game/ 
 
 ‘It’s a little scary’ – COVID-19 hits close to home at UWindsor residence 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 5, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/it-s-a-little-scary-covid-19-hits-close-to-home-at-uwindsor-
residence-1.5694543 
 
 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/hospital-capacity-issues-putting-a-strain-on-windsor-essex-healthcare-1.16620389
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/hospital-capacity-issues-putting-a-strain-on-windsor-essex-healthcare-1.16620389
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-hospitals-capacity-concerns-1.6272671
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/local-agencies-warn-of-overburdened-health-care-system
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/local-agencies-warn-of-overburdened-health-care-system
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-were-headed-for-a-truckload-of-trouble
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/no-additional-restrictions-for-sporting-events-and-concert-venues-in-windsor-essex-wechu-1.5694923
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/no-additional-restrictions-for-sporting-events-and-concert-venues-in-windsor-essex-wechu-1.5694923
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/04/eshc-pleads-cooperation-covid-19-cases-rise/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/04/eshc-pleads-cooperation-covid-19-cases-rise/
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-identifies-high-risk-covid-19-exposure-point-at-kingsville-restaurant-1.16621304
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-identifies-high-risk-covid-19-exposure-point-at-kingsville-restaurant-1.16621304
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/04/possible-covid-19-exposure-ohl-game/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/04/possible-covid-19-exposure-ohl-game/
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/it-s-a-little-scary-covid-19-hits-close-to-home-at-uwindsor-residence-1.5694543
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/it-s-a-little-scary-covid-19-hits-close-to-home-at-uwindsor-residence-1.5694543


WRH has replaced majority of terminated staff 
AM800, Dec. 3, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wrh-has-replaced-majority-of-terminated-staff-
1.16613366 
 
'Burden' of COVID-19 in community matches previous lockdown criteria: WECHU 
CBC Windsor, Dec. 6, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid-19-december-6-1.6274826 
 
Health unit recommends working remotely where possible 
Blackburn News, Dec. 6, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/06/health-unit-recommends-
working-remotely-possible/ 
 
New video helps parents prepare kids for COVID-19 vaccine 
Windsor Star, Dec. 6, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/new-video-helps-parents-prepare-kids-for-covid-19-
vaccine 
 
Local acting medical officer of health reluctant to shut down area schools 
AM800, Dec. 6, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/local-acting-moh-reluctant-to-shutdown-area-
schools-1.16643809 
 
Nurse’s bravery while helping at collision scene praised by Essex-Windsor EMS 
CBC Windsor-December 7, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/nurse-windsor-ems-award-1.6277551 
-- 
COVID-19 hospital admissions increasing in Windsor-Essex 
AM800 News-December 7, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-hospital-admissions-increasing-in-windsor-
essex-1.16649563 
-- 
Jarvis: The Superspreader party, it’s pretty clear someone violated public health rules 
Windsor Star-December 7, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-the-superspreader-party-its-pretty-clear-
someone-violated-public-health-rules 
-- 
Erie Shores Hospital Chief of Staff leave position 
Blackburn-December 7, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/08/erie-shores-hospital-chief-
staff-leave-position/ 
 
 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wrh-has-replaced-majority-of-terminated-staff-1.16613366
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wrh-has-replaced-majority-of-terminated-staff-1.16613366
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid-19-december-6-1.6274826
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/06/health-unit-recommends-working-remotely-possible/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/06/health-unit-recommends-working-remotely-possible/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/new-video-helps-parents-prepare-kids-for-covid-19-vaccine
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/new-video-helps-parents-prepare-kids-for-covid-19-vaccine
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/local-acting-moh-reluctant-to-shutdown-area-schools-1.16643809
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/local-acting-moh-reluctant-to-shutdown-area-schools-1.16643809
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/nurse-windsor-ems-award-1.6277551
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-hospital-admissions-increasing-in-windsor-essex-1.16649563
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-hospital-admissions-increasing-in-windsor-essex-1.16649563
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-the-superspreader-party-its-pretty-clear-someone-violated-public-health-rules
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-the-superspreader-party-its-pretty-clear-someone-violated-public-health-rules
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/08/erie-shores-hospital-chief-staff-leave-position/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/08/erie-shores-hospital-chief-staff-leave-position/


Nurse awarded EMS Chief’s commendation 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 8, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/nurse-awarded-ems-chief-s-commendation-1.5699740 
 
Acting medical officer of health tells community to plan for 10 or less people if you’re hosting 
a holiday gathering 
AM800, Dec. 8, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/acting-moh-tells-community-to-plan-for-10-or-less-
people-if-you-re-hosting-a-holiday-gathering-1.16655517 
 
As COVID-19 cases rise in Windsor-Essex, so do calls for more rapid testing 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 8, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/as-covid-19-cases-rise-in-windsor-essex-so-do-calls-for-more-rapid-
testing-1.5699565 
 
WRH officials discuss number of patients in ICU 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 9, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wrh-officials-discuss-number-of-patients-in-icu-1.5701665 
 
WRH down 25 per cent of surgeries compared to 2019-20 
AM800, Dec. 9, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wrh-down-25-per-cent-of-surgeries-compared-to-
2019-20-1.16661861 
 
Windsor mayor’s office fielding calls and emails about latest COVID-19 restrictions 
AM800, Dec. 9, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-mayor-s-office-fielding-calls-and-emails-
about-latest-covid-19-restrictions-1.16661150 
 
 ‘It’s a human tragedy’ – 30 unvaccinated, 12 vaccinated COVID-related local deaths reported 
since August 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 9, 2021  
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/it-s-a-human-tragedy-30-unvaccinated-12-vaccinated-covid-
related-local-deaths-reported-since-august-1.5700543 
 
'We have people dying who don't need to die:' Health unit explains COVID deaths as rates 
rise 
CBC Windsor, Dec. 9, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/109-new-cases-thursday-1.6279254 
 
Nearly three-quarters of recent COVID deaths unvaccinated 
Windsor Star, Dec. 9, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/nearly-three-quarters-of-recent-covid-deaths-
unvaccinated 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/nurse-awarded-ems-chief-s-commendation-1.5699740
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/acting-moh-tells-community-to-plan-for-10-or-less-people-if-you-re-hosting-a-holiday-gathering-1.16655517
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/acting-moh-tells-community-to-plan-for-10-or-less-people-if-you-re-hosting-a-holiday-gathering-1.16655517
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/as-covid-19-cases-rise-in-windsor-essex-so-do-calls-for-more-rapid-testing-1.5699565
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/as-covid-19-cases-rise-in-windsor-essex-so-do-calls-for-more-rapid-testing-1.5699565
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wrh-officials-discuss-number-of-patients-in-icu-1.5701665
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wrh-down-25-per-cent-of-surgeries-compared-to-2019-20-1.16661861
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wrh-down-25-per-cent-of-surgeries-compared-to-2019-20-1.16661861
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-mayor-s-office-fielding-calls-and-emails-about-latest-covid-19-restrictions-1.16661150
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-mayor-s-office-fielding-calls-and-emails-about-latest-covid-19-restrictions-1.16661150
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/it-s-a-human-tragedy-30-unvaccinated-12-vaccinated-covid-related-local-deaths-reported-since-august-1.5700543
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/it-s-a-human-tragedy-30-unvaccinated-12-vaccinated-covid-related-local-deaths-reported-since-august-1.5700543
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/109-new-cases-thursday-1.6279254
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/nearly-three-quarters-of-recent-covid-deaths-unvaccinated
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/nearly-three-quarters-of-recent-covid-deaths-unvaccinated


 
 ‘I felt like the Grinch’ – Chatham-Kent medical health officer responds to extra COVID-19 
restrictions 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 9, 2021  
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/i-felt-like-the-grinch-ck-medical-health-officer-responds-to-extra-
covid-19-restrictions-1.5701159 
 
City of Windsor re-examines COVID protocols following exposure alert 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 11, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/city-of-windsor-re-examines-covid-protocols-following-exposure-
alert-1.5703673 
 
Kingsville urges Health Unit to reconsider capacity limits 
Blackburn News, Dec. 13, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/13/kingsville-urges-health-unit-
reconsider-capacity-limits/ 
 
Why does WECHU publish less COVID-19 data than other Ontario health units? 
CBC Windsor, Dec. 10, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/lack-of-covid-data-being-critized-1.6279832 
 
Groundhog Day all over again: capacity limits restrictions return to Windsor-Essex 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 10, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/groundhog-day-all-over-again-capacity-limits-restrictions-return-
to-windsor-essex-1.5702858 
 
Holiday parties cancelled 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 10, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/mobile/video?cid=sm%3Atrueanthem%3Actvwindsor%3Apost&clip
Id=2342102&utm_campaign=trueAnthem%3A+Trending+Content&utm_medium=trueAnthem
&utm_source=facebook&fbclid=IwAR1QXxGfoz5qdEvsipRK4bAYw-WlWRfL50THrY-
_3dHdXHT7jqmx85hX7Do 
 
Omicron variant’s Windsor-Essex arrival just a matter of time 
Windsor Star, Dec. 13, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/omicron-variants-windsor-essex-arrival-just-a-
matter-of-time 
 
Jarvis: Time’s up for education about public health rules 
Windsor Star, Dec. 13, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-times-up-for-education-about-public-health-
rules 
 
 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/i-felt-like-the-grinch-ck-medical-health-officer-responds-to-extra-covid-19-restrictions-1.5701159
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/i-felt-like-the-grinch-ck-medical-health-officer-responds-to-extra-covid-19-restrictions-1.5701159
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/city-of-windsor-re-examines-covid-protocols-following-exposure-alert-1.5703673
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/city-of-windsor-re-examines-covid-protocols-following-exposure-alert-1.5703673
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/13/kingsville-urges-health-unit-reconsider-capacity-limits/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/13/kingsville-urges-health-unit-reconsider-capacity-limits/
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/lack-of-covid-data-being-critized-1.6279832
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/groundhog-day-all-over-again-capacity-limits-restrictions-return-to-windsor-essex-1.5702858
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/groundhog-day-all-over-again-capacity-limits-restrictions-return-to-windsor-essex-1.5702858
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/mobile/video?cid=sm%3Atrueanthem%3Actvwindsor%3Apost&clipId=2342102&utm_campaign=trueAnthem%3A+Trending+Content&utm_medium=trueAnthem&utm_source=facebook&fbclid=IwAR1QXxGfoz5qdEvsipRK4bAYw-WlWRfL50THrY-_3dHdXHT7jqmx85hX7Do
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/mobile/video?cid=sm%3Atrueanthem%3Actvwindsor%3Apost&clipId=2342102&utm_campaign=trueAnthem%3A+Trending+Content&utm_medium=trueAnthem&utm_source=facebook&fbclid=IwAR1QXxGfoz5qdEvsipRK4bAYw-WlWRfL50THrY-_3dHdXHT7jqmx85hX7Do
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/mobile/video?cid=sm%3Atrueanthem%3Actvwindsor%3Apost&clipId=2342102&utm_campaign=trueAnthem%3A+Trending+Content&utm_medium=trueAnthem&utm_source=facebook&fbclid=IwAR1QXxGfoz5qdEvsipRK4bAYw-WlWRfL50THrY-_3dHdXHT7jqmx85hX7Do
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/mobile/video?cid=sm%3Atrueanthem%3Actvwindsor%3Apost&clipId=2342102&utm_campaign=trueAnthem%3A+Trending+Content&utm_medium=trueAnthem&utm_source=facebook&fbclid=IwAR1QXxGfoz5qdEvsipRK4bAYw-WlWRfL50THrY-_3dHdXHT7jqmx85hX7Do
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/omicron-variants-windsor-essex-arrival-just-a-matter-of-time
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/omicron-variants-windsor-essex-arrival-just-a-matter-of-time
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-times-up-for-education-about-public-health-rules
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-times-up-for-education-about-public-health-rules


Health unit clarifying latest measures after confusion over the weekend 
AM800, Dec. 13, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-clarifying-latest-measures-after-
confusion-over-the-weekend-1.16694422 
 
WECHU enforcement officers focus on education businesses as confusion arises over new 
rules 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 13, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-enforcement-officers-focus-on-educating-businesses-as-
confusion-arises-over-new-rules-1.5705476 
 
ESHC touts vaccinations as COVID-19 cases, variants swell 
Blackburn News, Dec. 14, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/14/eshc-touts-vaccinations-
covid-19-cases-variants-swell/ 
 
Omicron variant detected in Windsor-Essex. WECHU reports three more deaths and 44 new 
cases. 
AM800-DECEMBER 14, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/omicron-variant-detected-in-windsor-essex-wechu-
reports-three-more-deaths-and-44-new-cases-1.16701757 
 
City Council pushing province to speed up COVID-19 vaccine booster roll out 
AM800-DECEMBER 14, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/city-council-pushing-province-to-speed-up-covid-19-
vaccine-booster-roll-out-1.16707506 
 
Jarvis: For once in this 21 month pandemic lets listen to the experts 
BLACKBURN NEWS-DECEMBER 14, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-for-once-in-this-21-month-pandemic-lets-
listen-to-the-experts 
 
Local COVID-19 vaccine rollout hits a wall 
AM800, Dec. 15, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/local-covid-19-vaccine-rollout-hits-a-wall-1.16711175 
 
Omicron raises urgency for unvaccinated to get shots 
Blackburn News, Dec. 15, 2021                                                                                                   
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/15/omicron-raises-urgency-
unvaccinated-get-shots/ 
 
 
 
 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-clarifying-latest-measures-after-confusion-over-the-weekend-1.16694422
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-clarifying-latest-measures-after-confusion-over-the-weekend-1.16694422
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-enforcement-officers-focus-on-educating-businesses-as-confusion-arises-over-new-rules-1.5705476
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-enforcement-officers-focus-on-educating-businesses-as-confusion-arises-over-new-rules-1.5705476
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/14/eshc-touts-vaccinations-covid-19-cases-variants-swell/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/14/eshc-touts-vaccinations-covid-19-cases-variants-swell/
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/omicron-variant-detected-in-windsor-essex-wechu-reports-three-more-deaths-and-44-new-cases-1.16701757
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/omicron-variant-detected-in-windsor-essex-wechu-reports-three-more-deaths-and-44-new-cases-1.16701757
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/city-council-pushing-province-to-speed-up-covid-19-vaccine-booster-roll-out-1.16707506
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/city-council-pushing-province-to-speed-up-covid-19-vaccine-booster-roll-out-1.16707506
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-for-once-in-this-21-month-pandemic-lets-listen-to-the-experts
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-for-once-in-this-21-month-pandemic-lets-listen-to-the-experts
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/local-covid-19-vaccine-rollout-hits-a-wall-1.16711175
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/15/omicron-raises-urgency-unvaccinated-get-shots/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/15/omicron-raises-urgency-unvaccinated-get-shots/


50,000 Windsor-Essex residents remain unvaccinated against COVID-19 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 15, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/50-000-windsor-essex-residents-remain-unvaccinated-against-
covid-19-1.5708707 
 
Doctors launch plan to keep people out of ER 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 15, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/mobile/video?clipId=2344493 
 
No decision on in-person learning after break but preparations ongoing 
AM800, Dec. 15, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/no-decision-on-in-person-learning-after-break-but-
preparations-ongoing-1.16710763 
 
WRH President and CEO says Windsor-Essex ready for bigger booster rollout 
AM800, Dec. 16, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wrh-president-and-ceo-says-windsor-essex-ready-
for-bigger-booster-rollout-1.16717568 
 
Code Black Part 1: Opioid crisis and hospital offload delays tie up paramedics 
Windsor Star, Dec. 16, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/code-black-part-1-opioid-crisis-and-hospital-offload-
delays-tie-up-paramedics 
 
Windsor toddler nearly dies in midst of mysterious spike in RSV cases 
Windsor Star, Dec. 16, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-toddler-nearly-dies-in-midst-of-mysterious-
spike-in-rsv-cases 
 
WECHU calling for more public health measures provincewide to break the chain of 
transmission 
AM800, Dec. 16, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wechu-calling-for-more-public-health-measures-
province-wide-to-break-the-chain-of-transmission-1.16722920 
 
‘That’s insufficient’ – Windsor-Essex acting medical officer of health wants province to add 
more restrictions 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 16, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/that-s-insufficient-windsor-essex-acting-moh-wants-province-to-
add-more-restrictions-1.5710377 
 
 
 
 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/50-000-windsor-essex-residents-remain-unvaccinated-against-covid-19-1.5708707
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/50-000-windsor-essex-residents-remain-unvaccinated-against-covid-19-1.5708707
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/mobile/video?clipId=2344493
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/no-decision-on-in-person-learning-after-break-but-preparations-ongoing-1.16710763
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/no-decision-on-in-person-learning-after-break-but-preparations-ongoing-1.16710763
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wrh-president-and-ceo-says-windsor-essex-ready-for-bigger-booster-rollout-1.16717568
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wrh-president-and-ceo-says-windsor-essex-ready-for-bigger-booster-rollout-1.16717568
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/code-black-part-1-opioid-crisis-and-hospital-offload-delays-tie-up-paramedics
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/code-black-part-1-opioid-crisis-and-hospital-offload-delays-tie-up-paramedics
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-toddler-nearly-dies-in-midst-of-mysterious-spike-in-rsv-cases
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-toddler-nearly-dies-in-midst-of-mysterious-spike-in-rsv-cases
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wechu-calling-for-more-public-health-measures-province-wide-to-break-the-chain-of-transmission-1.16722920
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wechu-calling-for-more-public-health-measures-province-wide-to-break-the-chain-of-transmission-1.16722920
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/that-s-insufficient-windsor-essex-acting-moh-wants-province-to-add-more-restrictions-1.5710377
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/that-s-insufficient-windsor-essex-acting-moh-wants-province-to-add-more-restrictions-1.5710377


WECHU working on COVID-19 booster rollout as eligibility expands 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 16, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-working-on-covid-19-booster-roll-out-as-eligibility-expands-
1.5710463 
 
Health unit looking to increase capacity for vaccine booster rollout 
AM800, Dec. 16, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-looking-to-increase-capacity-for-vaccine-
booster-rollout-1.16718105 
 
Windsor-Essex students asked to take home items in case schools close after holiday break 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 16, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-essex-students-asked-to-take-home-items-in-case-
schools-close-after-holiday-break-1.5710120 
 
Musyj: Windsor-Essex vaccine supply sufficient for now 
Windsor Star, Dec. 19, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/musyj-windsor-essex-vaccine-supply-sufficient-for-
now 
 
Health unit plans new mass vaccination sites to boost community's immunity to COVID-19 
CBC Windsor, Dec. 19, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/health-unit-plans-new-mass-vaccination-sites-to-
boost-community-s-immunity-to-covid-19-1.6291966 
 
Windsor-Essex County Health Unit ramps up capacity for vaccination sites 
AM800, Dec. 19, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-essex-county-health-unit-ramps-up-
capacity-for-vaccination-sites-1.16739613 
 
WECHU preparing for increased vaccine capacity 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 18, 2021  
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-preparing-for-increased-vaccine-capacity-1.5712852 
 
Spelling error on Windsor billboard draws derision 
Windsor Star, Dec. 19, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/spelling-error-on-windsor-billboard-draws-derision 
 
Critical error on Windsor, ON billboard 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 19, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/critical-error-on-windsor-ont-billboard-1.5713521 
 
 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-working-on-covid-19-booster-roll-out-as-eligibility-expands-1.5710463
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-working-on-covid-19-booster-roll-out-as-eligibility-expands-1.5710463
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-looking-to-increase-capacity-for-vaccine-booster-rollout-1.16718105
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-looking-to-increase-capacity-for-vaccine-booster-rollout-1.16718105
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-essex-students-asked-to-take-home-items-in-case-schools-close-after-holiday-break-1.5710120
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-essex-students-asked-to-take-home-items-in-case-schools-close-after-holiday-break-1.5710120
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/musyj-windsor-essex-vaccine-supply-sufficient-for-now
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/musyj-windsor-essex-vaccine-supply-sufficient-for-now
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/health-unit-plans-new-mass-vaccination-sites-to-boost-community-s-immunity-to-covid-19-1.6291966
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/health-unit-plans-new-mass-vaccination-sites-to-boost-community-s-immunity-to-covid-19-1.6291966
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-essex-county-health-unit-ramps-up-capacity-for-vaccination-sites-1.16739613
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-essex-county-health-unit-ramps-up-capacity-for-vaccination-sites-1.16739613
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-preparing-for-increased-vaccine-capacity-1.5712852
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/spelling-error-on-windsor-billboard-draws-derision
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/critical-error-on-windsor-ont-billboard-1.5713521


 
Code Black Part 2: Pandemic takes toll on Windsor-Essex EMS 
Windsor Star, Dec. 18, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/code-black-part-2-pandemic-takes-toll-on-essex-
windsor-ems 
 
John McGivney Children’s Centre to host several COVID-19 vaccination clinics 
AM800, Dec. 19, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/john-mcgivney-children-s-centre-to-host-several-
covid-19-vaccination-clinics-1.16738754 
 
Windsor LCBOs receive rapid tests Friday, but ran out quickly 
CBC Windsor, Dec. 17, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-rapid-tests-1.6290154 
 
New leadership coming to CMHA Windsor-Essex County branch 
Blackburn News, Dec. 19, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/19/new-leadership-coming-
cmha-windsor-essex-county-branch/ 
 
Ramped up COVID precautions return, hampering border-crossing holiday gatherings 
Windsor Star, Dec. 17, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/ramped-up-covid-precautions-return-hampering-
border-crossing-holiday-gatherings 
 
Just in time: Large shipment of vaccines arrive in Windsor-Essex 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 20, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/just-in-time-large-shipment-of-vaccines-arrive-in-windsor-essex-
1.5714587 
 
WRH releases holiday care guide 
Blackburn News, Dec. 21, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/21/wrh-releases-holiday-care-
guide/ 
 
Billboard ad with 'critical' spelling error removed Monday 
CBC Windsor, Dec. 20, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/billboard-error-1.6293093 
 
Additional mass vaccination clincs expected to open in early January 
Blackburn News, Dec. 20, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/20/additional-mass-vaccination-
clinics-expected-open-early-january/ 
 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/code-black-part-2-pandemic-takes-toll-on-essex-windsor-ems
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/code-black-part-2-pandemic-takes-toll-on-essex-windsor-ems
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/john-mcgivney-children-s-centre-to-host-several-covid-19-vaccination-clinics-1.16738754
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/john-mcgivney-children-s-centre-to-host-several-covid-19-vaccination-clinics-1.16738754
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-rapid-tests-1.6290154
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/19/new-leadership-coming-cmha-windsor-essex-county-branch/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/19/new-leadership-coming-cmha-windsor-essex-county-branch/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/ramped-up-covid-precautions-return-hampering-border-crossing-holiday-gatherings
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/ramped-up-covid-precautions-return-hampering-border-crossing-holiday-gatherings
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/just-in-time-large-shipment-of-vaccines-arrive-in-windsor-essex-1.5714587
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/just-in-time-large-shipment-of-vaccines-arrive-in-windsor-essex-1.5714587
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/21/wrh-releases-holiday-care-guide/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/21/wrh-releases-holiday-care-guide/
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/billboard-error-1.6293093
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/20/additional-mass-vaccination-clinics-expected-open-early-january/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/20/additional-mass-vaccination-clinics-expected-open-early-january/


Test positive? Call your close contacts, health unit says 
Windsor Star, Dec. 20, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/test-positive-call-your-close-contacts-health-unit-
says 
 
Booster appointments available for ages 18+ as Windsor-Essex reports 255 new cases 
Monday 
CBC Windsor, Dec. 20, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-december-20-covid-19-1.6292320 
 
255 new cases of COVID-19 reported in Windsor-Essex over three days 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 20, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/255-new-cases-of-covid-19-reported-in-windsor-essex-over-three-
days-1.5714026 
 
WECHU reports 255 new COVID-19 cases in the area since Friday 
AM800, Dec. 20, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wechu-reports-255-new-covid-19-cases-in-the-area-
since-friday-1.16744705 
 
St. Clair College postpones classes amid surge 
Windsor Star, Dec. 20, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/st-clair-college-postpones-classes-amid-virus-surge 
 
College delays start of winter semester 
AM800, Dec. 20, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/college-delays-start-of-winter-semester-1.16744109 
 
St. Clair College delays start of winter semester by a week 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 20, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/st-clair-college-delays-start-of-winter-semester-by-a-week-
1.5715059 
 
WECHU adds and rescinds COVID-19 outbreaks at schools 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 20, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-adds-and-rescinds-covid-19-outbreaks-at-schools-
1.5714421 
 
COVID-19 school outbreaks added and lifted in Windsor-Essex 
AM800, Dec. 20, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-school-outbreaks-added-and-lifted-in-
windsor-essex-1.16744681 
 
Public school board adds seven more positive cases of COVID-19 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/test-positive-call-your-close-contacts-health-unit-says
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/test-positive-call-your-close-contacts-health-unit-says
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-december-20-covid-19-1.6292320
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/255-new-cases-of-covid-19-reported-in-windsor-essex-over-three-days-1.5714026
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/255-new-cases-of-covid-19-reported-in-windsor-essex-over-three-days-1.5714026
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wechu-reports-255-new-covid-19-cases-in-the-area-since-friday-1.16744705
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wechu-reports-255-new-covid-19-cases-in-the-area-since-friday-1.16744705
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/st-clair-college-postpones-classes-amid-virus-surge
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/college-delays-start-of-winter-semester-1.16744109
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/st-clair-college-delays-start-of-winter-semester-by-a-week-1.5715059
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/st-clair-college-delays-start-of-winter-semester-by-a-week-1.5715059
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-adds-and-rescinds-covid-19-outbreaks-at-schools-1.5714421
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-adds-and-rescinds-covid-19-outbreaks-at-schools-1.5714421
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-school-outbreaks-added-and-lifted-in-windsor-essex-1.16744681
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-school-outbreaks-added-and-lifted-in-windsor-essex-1.16744681


AM800, Dec. 20, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/public-school-board-adds-seven-more-positive-
cases-of-covid-19-1.16748809 
 
COVID-19 outbreak lifted at South Woodslee long-term care home 
AM800, Dec. 20, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-outbreak-lifted-at-south-woodslee-long-
term-care-home-1.16744658 
 
Public board reports three new COVID-19 cases Monday 
Blackburn News, Dec. 20, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/20/public-board-reports-three-
new-covid-19-cases-monday/ 
 
Pop-up vaccination clinics continue at JMCC 
Blackburn News, Dec. 20, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/20/pop-vaccination-clinics-
continue-jmcc/ 
 
Windsor city council debate on supervised consumption site location delayed: WECHU 
CBC Windsor, Dec. 20, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/supervised-consumption-site-windsor-1.6292391 
 
Windsor council backs call for mandatory COVID-19 vaccinations for elementary students 
CBC Windsor, Dec. 21, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/student-vaccinations-windsor-1.6294437 
 
Health unit reports additional COVID-19 death and 63 new cases 
AM800, Dec. 21, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-reports-additional-covid-19-death-and-
63-new-cases-1.16753912 
 
1 more death, 63 new COVID-19 cases in Windsor-Essex Tuesday 
CBC Windsor, Dec. 21, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-december-21-covid-19-1.6293456 
 
Active COVID-19 cases dip another death Windsor-Essex 
Blackburn News, Dec. 21, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/21/active-covid-19-cases-dip-
another-death-windsor-essex/ 
 
 
 
 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/public-school-board-adds-seven-more-positive-cases-of-covid-19-1.16748809
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/public-school-board-adds-seven-more-positive-cases-of-covid-19-1.16748809
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-outbreak-lifted-at-south-woodslee-long-term-care-home-1.16744658
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-outbreak-lifted-at-south-woodslee-long-term-care-home-1.16744658
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/20/public-board-reports-three-new-covid-19-cases-monday/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/20/public-board-reports-three-new-covid-19-cases-monday/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/20/pop-vaccination-clinics-continue-jmcc/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/20/pop-vaccination-clinics-continue-jmcc/
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/supervised-consumption-site-windsor-1.6292391
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/student-vaccinations-windsor-1.6294437
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-reports-additional-covid-19-death-and-63-new-cases-1.16753912
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-reports-additional-covid-19-death-and-63-new-cases-1.16753912
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-december-21-covid-19-1.6293456
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/21/active-covid-19-cases-dip-another-death-windsor-essex/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/21/active-covid-19-cases-dip-another-death-windsor-essex/


This is how to celebrate holidays safely and maintain your mental health: WECHU 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 21, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/this-is-how-to-celebrate-holidays-safely-and-maintain-your-
mental-health-wechu-1.5715827 
 
Outbreak declared after eight COVID-19 cases reported at Leamington long-term care home 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 21, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/outbreak-declared-after-eight-covid-19-cases-reported-at-
leamington-long-term-care-home-1.5715425 
 
Eight confirmed cases of COVID-19 at Leamington long-term care home 
AM800, Dec. 21, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/eight-confirmed-cases-of-covid-19-at-leamington-
long-term-care-home-1.16753960 
 
Public board adds six positive cases of COVID-19 Tuesday 
AM800, Dec. 21, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/public-school-board-adds-six-positive-cases-of-covid-
19-tuesday-1.16759893 
 
Debate over downtown Windsor safe consumption site pushed back 
Blackburn News, Dec. 21, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/21/debate-downtown-windsor-
safe-consumption-site-pushed-back/ 
 
Windsor city council approval of drug consumption site delayed again 
Windsor Star, Dec. 21, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-city-council-approval-of-drug-consumption-
site-delayed-again 
 
Grow On raises $225,000 for Windsor Cancer Centre Foundation 
Windsor Star, Dec. 21, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/grow-on-raises-225000-for-windsor-cancer-centre-
foundation 
 
Jarvis: There is hope; use it to buttress yourself and find joy where you can this Christmas 
Windsor Star, Dec. 22, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-there-is-hope-use-it-to-buttress-yourself-and-
find-joy-where-you-can-this-christmas 
 
Hot unit opens as WRH prepares for more Omicron cases 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 22, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/hot-unit-opens-as-windsor-regional-hospital-prepares-for-more-
omicron-cases-1.5717048 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/this-is-how-to-celebrate-holidays-safely-and-maintain-your-mental-health-wechu-1.5715827
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/this-is-how-to-celebrate-holidays-safely-and-maintain-your-mental-health-wechu-1.5715827
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/outbreak-declared-after-eight-covid-19-cases-reported-at-leamington-long-term-care-home-1.5715425
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/outbreak-declared-after-eight-covid-19-cases-reported-at-leamington-long-term-care-home-1.5715425
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/eight-confirmed-cases-of-covid-19-at-leamington-long-term-care-home-1.16753960
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/eight-confirmed-cases-of-covid-19-at-leamington-long-term-care-home-1.16753960
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/public-school-board-adds-six-positive-cases-of-covid-19-tuesday-1.16759893
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/public-school-board-adds-six-positive-cases-of-covid-19-tuesday-1.16759893
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/21/debate-downtown-windsor-safe-consumption-site-pushed-back/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/21/debate-downtown-windsor-safe-consumption-site-pushed-back/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-city-council-approval-of-drug-consumption-site-delayed-again
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-city-council-approval-of-drug-consumption-site-delayed-again
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/grow-on-raises-225000-for-windsor-cancer-centre-foundation
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/grow-on-raises-225000-for-windsor-cancer-centre-foundation
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-there-is-hope-use-it-to-buttress-yourself-and-find-joy-where-you-can-this-christmas
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-there-is-hope-use-it-to-buttress-yourself-and-find-joy-where-you-can-this-christmas
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/hot-unit-opens-as-windsor-regional-hospital-prepares-for-more-omicron-cases-1.5717048
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/hot-unit-opens-as-windsor-regional-hospital-prepares-for-more-omicron-cases-1.5717048


 
Windsor Regional Hospital opens COVID-19 'hot unit' to deal with patient surge 
CBC Windsor, Dec. 22, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-19-windsor-essex-december-23-1.6294820 
 
Hospitals prepare for crush of Omicron cases 
Blackburn News, Dec. 22, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/22/hospitals-prepare-crush-
omicron-cases/ 
 
Vaccine milestone: Windsor-Essex health officials celebrate a year of COVID-19 shots 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 22, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/vaccine-milestone-windsor-essex-health-officials-celebrate-a-year-
of-covid-19-shots-1.5716703 
 
One-year anniversary for COVID-19 vaccine rollout in Windsor-Essex 
AM800, Dec. 22, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/one-year-anniversary-for-covid-19-vaccine-rollout-in-
windsor-essex-1.16764788 
 
One-year anniversary since vaccines arrived in Windsor-Essex 
Blackburn News, Dec. 22, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/22/one-year-anniversary-since-
vaccines-arrived-windsor-essex/ 
 
Personal support worker reflects on being 1st in Windsor to get COVID-19 vaccine a year ago 
CBC Windsor, Dec. 22, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/psw-vaccine-shot-windsor-essex-covid-19-
1.6294814 
 
Health officials bolster boosters on anniversary of first COVID jab in Windsor-Essex 
Windsor Star, Dec. 22, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-officials-bolster-boosters-on-anniversary-of-
first-covid-jab-in-windsor-essex 
 
Mixing COVID-19 vaccines doesn’t impact effectiveness - WECHU 
AM800, Dec. 22, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/mixing-covid-19-vaccines-doesn-t-impact-
effectiveness-wechu-1.16767616 
 
More COVID-19 vaccination options launching in Essex County 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 22, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/more-covid-19-vaccination-options-launching-in-essex-county-
1.5717155 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-19-windsor-essex-december-23-1.6294820
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/22/hospitals-prepare-crush-omicron-cases/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/22/hospitals-prepare-crush-omicron-cases/
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/vaccine-milestone-windsor-essex-health-officials-celebrate-a-year-of-covid-19-shots-1.5716703
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/vaccine-milestone-windsor-essex-health-officials-celebrate-a-year-of-covid-19-shots-1.5716703
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/one-year-anniversary-for-covid-19-vaccine-rollout-in-windsor-essex-1.16764788
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/one-year-anniversary-for-covid-19-vaccine-rollout-in-windsor-essex-1.16764788
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/22/one-year-anniversary-since-vaccines-arrived-windsor-essex/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/22/one-year-anniversary-since-vaccines-arrived-windsor-essex/
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/psw-vaccine-shot-windsor-essex-covid-19-1.6294814
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/psw-vaccine-shot-windsor-essex-covid-19-1.6294814
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-officials-bolster-boosters-on-anniversary-of-first-covid-jab-in-windsor-essex
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-officials-bolster-boosters-on-anniversary-of-first-covid-jab-in-windsor-essex
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/mixing-covid-19-vaccines-doesn-t-impact-effectiveness-wechu-1.16767616
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/mixing-covid-19-vaccines-doesn-t-impact-effectiveness-wechu-1.16767616
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/more-covid-19-vaccination-options-launching-in-essex-county-1.5717155
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/more-covid-19-vaccination-options-launching-in-essex-county-1.5717155


 
COVID-19 mass vaccination clinic to reopen in Leamington 
AM800, Dec. 22, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-mass-vaccination-clinic-to-reopen-in-
leamington-1.16767387 
 
WECHU announces three more COVID-19 deaths in Windsor-Essex and 84 new cases 
AM800, Dec. 22, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wechu-announces-three-more-covid-19-deaths-in-
windsor-essex-and-84-new-cases-1.16763900 
 
84 new cases of COVID-19, three new deaths reported in Windsor-Essex 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 22, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/84-new-cases-of-covid-19-three-new-deaths-reported-in-windsor-
essex-1.5716531 
 
Additional school child care outbreaks declared in Windsor-Essex 
AM800, Dec. 22, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/additional-school-child-care-outbreaks-declared-in-
windsor-essex-1.16765937 
 
WECDSB again calling for elementary students to be vaccinated before entering school 
AM800, Dec. 22, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wecdsb-again-calling-for-elementary-students-to-be-
vaccinated-before-entering-school-1.16764579 
 
Mass vaccination clinic in Leamington reopens in January 
Blackburn News, Dec. 22, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/23/mass-vaccination-clinic-
leamington-reopens-january/ 
 
City staff assisting at the Devonshire Mall mass vaccination clinic 
AM800, Dec. 23, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/city-staff-assisting-at-the-devonshire-mall-mass-
vaccination-clinic-1.16770918 
 
City of Windsor staff to help at mass vaccination centre 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 23, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/city-of-windsor-staff-to-help-at-mass-vaccination-centre-
1.5718137 
 
 
 
 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-mass-vaccination-clinic-to-reopen-in-leamington-1.16767387
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-mass-vaccination-clinic-to-reopen-in-leamington-1.16767387
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wechu-announces-three-more-covid-19-deaths-in-windsor-essex-and-84-new-cases-1.16763900
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wechu-announces-three-more-covid-19-deaths-in-windsor-essex-and-84-new-cases-1.16763900
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/84-new-cases-of-covid-19-three-new-deaths-reported-in-windsor-essex-1.5716531
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/84-new-cases-of-covid-19-three-new-deaths-reported-in-windsor-essex-1.5716531
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/additional-school-child-care-outbreaks-declared-in-windsor-essex-1.16765937
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/additional-school-child-care-outbreaks-declared-in-windsor-essex-1.16765937
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wecdsb-again-calling-for-elementary-students-to-be-vaccinated-before-entering-school-1.16764579
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wecdsb-again-calling-for-elementary-students-to-be-vaccinated-before-entering-school-1.16764579
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/23/mass-vaccination-clinic-leamington-reopens-january/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/23/mass-vaccination-clinic-leamington-reopens-january/
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/city-staff-assisting-at-the-devonshire-mall-mass-vaccination-clinic-1.16770918
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/city-staff-assisting-at-the-devonshire-mall-mass-vaccination-clinic-1.16770918
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/city-of-windsor-staff-to-help-at-mass-vaccination-centre-1.5718137
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/city-of-windsor-staff-to-help-at-mass-vaccination-centre-1.5718137


Health unit considers options to ramp up booster shots 
Blackburn News, Dec. 24, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/24/health-unit-considers-
options-ramp-booster-shots/ 
 
Health unit to open COVID-19 mass vaccination clinic in west Windsor 
AM800, Dec. 23, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-to-open-covid-19-mass-vaccination-
clinic-in-west-windsor-1.16773990 
 
West Windsor mass vaccination centre to open Jan. 5 
Windsor Star, Dec. 23, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/west-windsor-mass-vaccination-centre-set-to-open-
jan-5 
 
Mass vaccination clinic in Leamington reopens in January 
Blackburn News, Dec. 23, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/23/mass-vaccination-clinic-
leamington-reopens-january/ 
 
Mass vaccination centre reopening in Leamington 
Windsor Star, Dec. 23, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/mass-vaccination-centre-reopening-in-leamington 
 
Health unit urging residents to limit the number of holiday gatherings they host or attend 
AM800, Dec. 23, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-urging-residents-to-limit-the-number-of-
holiday-gatherings-they-host-or-attend-1.16776038 
 
Health unit offers guidance for COVID-safe holiday celebrations 
Windsor Star, Dec. 23, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-unit-offers-guidance-for-covid-safe-holiday-
celebrations 
 
Nine tickets issued during latest COVID-19 enforcement blitz 
AM800, Dec. 23, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/nine-tickets-issued-during-latest-covid-19-
enforcement-blitz-1.16770949 
 
One more death and 105 new COVID-19 cases reported in Windsor-Essex 
AM800, Dec. 23, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/one-more-death-and-105-new-covid-19-cases-
reported-in-windsor-essex-1.16770378 
 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/24/health-unit-considers-options-ramp-booster-shots/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/24/health-unit-considers-options-ramp-booster-shots/
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-to-open-covid-19-mass-vaccination-clinic-in-west-windsor-1.16773990
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-to-open-covid-19-mass-vaccination-clinic-in-west-windsor-1.16773990
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/west-windsor-mass-vaccination-centre-set-to-open-jan-5
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/west-windsor-mass-vaccination-centre-set-to-open-jan-5
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/23/mass-vaccination-clinic-leamington-reopens-january/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/23/mass-vaccination-clinic-leamington-reopens-january/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/mass-vaccination-centre-reopening-in-leamington
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-urging-residents-to-limit-the-number-of-holiday-gatherings-they-host-or-attend-1.16776038
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-urging-residents-to-limit-the-number-of-holiday-gatherings-they-host-or-attend-1.16776038
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-unit-offers-guidance-for-covid-safe-holiday-celebrations
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-unit-offers-guidance-for-covid-safe-holiday-celebrations
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/nine-tickets-issued-during-latest-covid-19-enforcement-blitz-1.16770949
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/nine-tickets-issued-during-latest-covid-19-enforcement-blitz-1.16770949
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/one-more-death-and-105-new-covid-19-cases-reported-in-windsor-essex-1.16770378
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/one-more-death-and-105-new-covid-19-cases-reported-in-windsor-essex-1.16770378


New cases of COVID-19: One new death reported in Windsor-Essex 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 23, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/105-new-cases-of-covid-19-one-new-death-reported-in-windsor-
essex-1.5718342 
 
Windsor-Essex health unit concerned over business non-compliance as region records 105 
new COVID-19 cases 
CBC Windsor, Dec. 23, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-19-windsor-essex-december-23-1.6296136 
 
Two school outbreaks lifted in Windsor-Essex, one added to list 
AM800, Dec. 23, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/two-school-covid-19-outbreaks-lifted-in-windsor-
essex-one-added-to-list-1.16770396 
 
Several businesses ticketed during COVID-19 enforcement blitz 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 23, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/several-businesses-ticketed-during-covid-19-enforcement-blitz-
1.5718149 
 
Nine tickets handed out in weekend blitz 
Blackburn News, Dec. 23, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/23/nine-tickets-handed-
weekend-blitz/ 
 
Inmate at Windsor jail dies during COVID outbreak 
Windsor Star, Dec. 23, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/inmate-at-windsor-jail-dies-during-covid-outbreak 
 
Tecumseh plans circuit breaker closures to slow spread of COVID-19 
Windsor Star, Dec. 23, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/tecumseh-plans-circuit-breaker-closures-to-slow-
spread-of-covid-19 
 
Annual Grow On Windsor campaign brings in more than $255K 
AM800, Dec. 23, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/annual-grow-on-windsor-campaign-brings-in-more-
than-255k-1.16770911 
 
$255K raised for this year’s Grow On campaign 
Blackburn News, Dec. 24, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/24/255k-raised-years-grow-
campaign/ 
 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/105-new-cases-of-covid-19-one-new-death-reported-in-windsor-essex-1.5718342
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/105-new-cases-of-covid-19-one-new-death-reported-in-windsor-essex-1.5718342
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-19-windsor-essex-december-23-1.6296136
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/two-school-covid-19-outbreaks-lifted-in-windsor-essex-one-added-to-list-1.16770396
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/two-school-covid-19-outbreaks-lifted-in-windsor-essex-one-added-to-list-1.16770396
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/several-businesses-ticketed-during-covid-19-enforcement-blitz-1.5718149
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/several-businesses-ticketed-during-covid-19-enforcement-blitz-1.5718149
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/23/nine-tickets-handed-weekend-blitz/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/23/nine-tickets-handed-weekend-blitz/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/inmate-at-windsor-jail-dies-during-covid-outbreak
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/tecumseh-plans-circuit-breaker-closures-to-slow-spread-of-covid-19
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/tecumseh-plans-circuit-breaker-closures-to-slow-spread-of-covid-19
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/annual-grow-on-windsor-campaign-brings-in-more-than-255k-1.16770911
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/annual-grow-on-windsor-campaign-brings-in-more-than-255k-1.16770911
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/24/255k-raised-years-grow-campaign/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/24/255k-raised-years-grow-campaign/


Planning for new regional acute care hospital to be major focus in 2022 
AM800, Dec. 28, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/planning-for-new-regional-acute-care-hospital-to-be-
a-major-focus-in-2022-1.16798815 
 
WRH announces changes to visitor policy for patients with COVID-19 
AM800, Dec. 27, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wrh-announces-changes-to-visitor-policy-for-
patients-with-covid-19-1.16793009 
 
WRH to halt visitation for patients with suspected or confirmed COVID-19 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 26, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-regional-hospital-to-halt-visitation-for-patients-with-
suspected-or-confirmed-covid-19-1.5720049 
 
WRH alters visitation rules as Omicron cases climb 
CBC Windsor, Dec. 27, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-hospital-visitation-1.6298882 
 
Additional changes coming to WRH’s visitor policy 
Blackburn News, Dec. 26, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/26/additional-changes-coming-
windsor-regional-hospitals-visitor-policy/ 
 
WRH bans visitors for COVID-19 patients 
Windsor Star, Dec. 27, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-regional-hospital-bans-visitors-for-covid-
19-patients 
 
Health unit ready to open new COVID-19 vaccine clinic in west Windsor 
Blackburn News, Dec. 27, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/27/health-unit-ready-open-new-
covid-19-vaccine-clinic-west-windsor/ 
 
Investigation launched into inmate death South West Detention Centre outbreak 
CBC Windsor, Dec. 24, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/inmate-death-south-west-detention-centre-
outbreak-1.6279672 
 
Local COVID-19 data won’t be updated from WECHU until next week 
CBC Windsor, Dec. 24, 2021  
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-december-24-covid-19-1.6297438 
 
 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/planning-for-new-regional-acute-care-hospital-to-be-a-major-focus-in-2022-1.16798815
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/planning-for-new-regional-acute-care-hospital-to-be-a-major-focus-in-2022-1.16798815
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wrh-announces-changes-to-visitor-policy-for-patients-with-covid-19-1.16793009
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wrh-announces-changes-to-visitor-policy-for-patients-with-covid-19-1.16793009
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-regional-hospital-to-halt-visitation-for-patients-with-suspected-or-confirmed-covid-19-1.5720049
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-regional-hospital-to-halt-visitation-for-patients-with-suspected-or-confirmed-covid-19-1.5720049
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-hospital-visitation-1.6298882
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/26/additional-changes-coming-windsor-regional-hospitals-visitor-policy/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/26/additional-changes-coming-windsor-regional-hospitals-visitor-policy/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-regional-hospital-bans-visitors-for-covid-19-patients
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-regional-hospital-bans-visitors-for-covid-19-patients
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/27/health-unit-ready-open-new-covid-19-vaccine-clinic-west-windsor/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/27/health-unit-ready-open-new-covid-19-vaccine-clinic-west-windsor/
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/inmate-death-south-west-detention-centre-outbreak-1.6279672
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/inmate-death-south-west-detention-centre-outbreak-1.6279672
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-december-24-covid-19-1.6297438


Planning for new regional acute care hospital to be a major focus in 2022 
AM800, Dec. 28, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/planning-for-new-regional-acute-care-hospital-to-be-
a-major-focus-in-2022-1.16798815 
 
Jarvis: It’s been a difficult year but a lot of good things also happened 
Windsor Star, Dec. 28, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-its-been-a-difficult-year-but-a-lot-of-good-
things-also-happened 
 
COVID-19 in 2021 a look back at the pandemics second year in Windsor-Essex 
Windsor Star, Dec. 28, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/covid-19-in-2021-a-look-back-at-the-pandemics-
second-year-in-windsor-essex 
 
Have cold or flu symptoms? Just stay home – WRH CEO 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 28, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/have-cold-or-flu-symptoms-just-stay-home-windsor-regional-
hospital-ceo-1.5721288 
 
Limited availability for COVID-19 tests after the holidays 
CBC Windsor, Dec. 28, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-19-test-windsor-holidays-1.6299176 
 
ESHC implementing no visitor policy 
AM800, Dec. 28, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/erie-shores-healthcare-implementing-no-visitor-
policy-1.16802241 
 
ESHC to implement temporary no visitor policy 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 28, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/erie-shores-healthcare-to-implement-temporary-no-visitor-policy-
1.5721457 
 
No visitors at ESHC 
Blackburn News, Dec. 29, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/29/no-visitors-eshc/ 
 
ESHC announces temporary no visitor policy 
Windsor Star, Dec. 28, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/erie-shores-healthcare-announces-temporary-no-
visitor-policy 
 
ESHC issues no visitors policy 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/planning-for-new-regional-acute-care-hospital-to-be-a-major-focus-in-2022-1.16798815
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/planning-for-new-regional-acute-care-hospital-to-be-a-major-focus-in-2022-1.16798815
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-its-been-a-difficult-year-but-a-lot-of-good-things-also-happened
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-its-been-a-difficult-year-but-a-lot-of-good-things-also-happened
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/covid-19-in-2021-a-look-back-at-the-pandemics-second-year-in-windsor-essex
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/covid-19-in-2021-a-look-back-at-the-pandemics-second-year-in-windsor-essex
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/have-cold-or-flu-symptoms-just-stay-home-windsor-regional-hospital-ceo-1.5721288
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/have-cold-or-flu-symptoms-just-stay-home-windsor-regional-hospital-ceo-1.5721288
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-19-test-windsor-holidays-1.6299176
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/erie-shores-healthcare-implementing-no-visitor-policy-1.16802241
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/erie-shores-healthcare-implementing-no-visitor-policy-1.16802241
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/erie-shores-healthcare-to-implement-temporary-no-visitor-policy-1.5721457
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/erie-shores-healthcare-to-implement-temporary-no-visitor-policy-1.5721457
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/29/no-visitors-eshc/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/erie-shores-healthcare-announces-temporary-no-visitor-policy
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/erie-shores-healthcare-announces-temporary-no-visitor-policy


CBC Windsor, Dec. 29, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/erie-shores-healthcare-no-visitors-policy-
1.6299354 
 
Windsor COVID-19 hospitalizations remain stable following holiday surge 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 28, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-covid-19-hospitalizations-remain-stable-following-holiday-
surge-1.5721373 
 
Record 270 active COVID-19 cases in Chatham-Kent 
Windsor Star, Dec. 28, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/record-270-active-covid-19-cases-in-chatham-
kent/wcm/15211fcc-64ba-4c9e-a42f-
c83b0d0ffefc?utm_term=Autofeed&utm_medium=Social&utm_source=Facebook&fbclid=IwAR
2l6f0qGVaf2eENd3M93zYCRw_r7hznUFfpaIqfA1gBLbimDdJBkZK1O5w#Echobox=1640715928 
 
Many unanswered questions from elementary school, staff on students returning to classes 
AM800, Dec. 28, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/many-unanswered-questions-from-elementary-
school-staff-on-students-returning-to-classes-1.16804895 
 
Local researcher issues warning to pregnant moms as fluoride returns to Windsor water 
Windsor Star, Dec. 28, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/researcher-issues-warning-to-pregnant-moms-as-
fluoride-returns-to-windsor-water 
 
WRH brings back no visitor policy as COVID-19 cases surge 
Windsor Star, Dec. 29, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-regional-hospital-brings-back-no-visitor-
policy-as-covid-19-cases-surge 
 
WRH reinstating no visitor policy 
AM800, Dec. 29, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wrh-reinstating-no-visitor-policy-1.16805657 
 
WRH reinstating visitor policy 
Blackburn News, Dec. 29, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/29/windsor-regional-hospital-
reinstating-visitor-policy/ 
 
WRH and HDGH reinstate no visitor policy 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 29, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-regional-hospital-and-hotel-dieu-grace-healthcare-
reinstate-no-visitor-policy-1.5722188 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/erie-shores-healthcare-no-visitors-policy-1.6299354
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/erie-shores-healthcare-no-visitors-policy-1.6299354
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-covid-19-hospitalizations-remain-stable-following-holiday-surge-1.5721373
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-covid-19-hospitalizations-remain-stable-following-holiday-surge-1.5721373
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/record-270-active-covid-19-cases-in-chatham-kent/wcm/15211fcc-64ba-4c9e-a42f-c83b0d0ffefc?utm_term=Autofeed&utm_medium=Social&utm_source=Facebook&fbclid=IwAR2l6f0qGVaf2eENd3M93zYCRw_r7hznUFfpaIqfA1gBLbimDdJBkZK1O5w#Echobox=1640715928
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/record-270-active-covid-19-cases-in-chatham-kent/wcm/15211fcc-64ba-4c9e-a42f-c83b0d0ffefc?utm_term=Autofeed&utm_medium=Social&utm_source=Facebook&fbclid=IwAR2l6f0qGVaf2eENd3M93zYCRw_r7hznUFfpaIqfA1gBLbimDdJBkZK1O5w#Echobox=1640715928
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/record-270-active-covid-19-cases-in-chatham-kent/wcm/15211fcc-64ba-4c9e-a42f-c83b0d0ffefc?utm_term=Autofeed&utm_medium=Social&utm_source=Facebook&fbclid=IwAR2l6f0qGVaf2eENd3M93zYCRw_r7hznUFfpaIqfA1gBLbimDdJBkZK1O5w#Echobox=1640715928
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/record-270-active-covid-19-cases-in-chatham-kent/wcm/15211fcc-64ba-4c9e-a42f-c83b0d0ffefc?utm_term=Autofeed&utm_medium=Social&utm_source=Facebook&fbclid=IwAR2l6f0qGVaf2eENd3M93zYCRw_r7hznUFfpaIqfA1gBLbimDdJBkZK1O5w#Echobox=1640715928
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/many-unanswered-questions-from-elementary-school-staff-on-students-returning-to-classes-1.16804895
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/many-unanswered-questions-from-elementary-school-staff-on-students-returning-to-classes-1.16804895
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/researcher-issues-warning-to-pregnant-moms-as-fluoride-returns-to-windsor-water
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/researcher-issues-warning-to-pregnant-moms-as-fluoride-returns-to-windsor-water
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-regional-hospital-brings-back-no-visitor-policy-as-covid-19-cases-surge
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-regional-hospital-brings-back-no-visitor-policy-as-covid-19-cases-surge
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wrh-reinstating-no-visitor-policy-1.16805657
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/29/windsor-regional-hospital-reinstating-visitor-policy/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/29/windsor-regional-hospital-reinstating-visitor-policy/
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-regional-hospital-and-hotel-dieu-grace-healthcare-reinstate-no-visitor-policy-1.5722188
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-regional-hospital-and-hotel-dieu-grace-healthcare-reinstate-no-visitor-policy-1.5722188


 
HDGH bringing in no visitor policy amid rising COVID-19 cases 
AM800, Dec. 29, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/hotel-dieu-grace-healthcare-bringing-in-no-visitor-
policy-amid-rising-covid-19-cases-1.16806909 
 
Shift in COVID-19 messaging expected in Windsor-Essex by local health unit 
AM800, Dec. 29, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/shift-in-covid-19-messaging-expected-in-windsor-
essex-by-local-health-unit-1.16806124 
 
Case counts no longer a reliable measure of COVID burden, says top doctor 
Windsor Star, Dec. 29, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/case-counts-no-longer-a-reliable-measure-of-covid-
burden-says-top-doctor 
 
Health unit shifting case counts, key indicators for COVID-19 messaging 
Blackburn News, Dec. 29, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/29/health-unit-shifting-case-
counts-key-indicator-covid-19-messaging/ 
 
WECHU considering new metrics for COVID-19 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 29, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-considering-new-metrics-for-covid-19-1.5722521 
 
993 new COVID-19 cases reported as of Christmas Eve in Windsor-Essex 
CBC Windsor, Dec. 29, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/wechu-covid19-dec29-1.6185343 
 
WECHU reports 993 new COVID-19 cases in Windsor-Essex since last Thursday 
AM800, Dec. 29, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wechu-reports-993-new-covid-19-cases-in-windsor-
essex-since-last-thursday-1.16805643 
 
993 new cases of COVID-19 reported in Windsor-Essex since Dec. 23 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 29, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/993-new-cases-of-covid-19-reported-in-windsor-essex-since-dec-
23-1.5722150 
 
Windsor-Essex acting medical officer of health hopes to see a return to the classroom 
CTV Windsor, Dec. 29, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-essex-acting-medical-officer-of-health-hopes-to-see-a-
return-to-the-classroom-1.5722429 
 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/hotel-dieu-grace-healthcare-bringing-in-no-visitor-policy-amid-rising-covid-19-cases-1.16806909
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/hotel-dieu-grace-healthcare-bringing-in-no-visitor-policy-amid-rising-covid-19-cases-1.16806909
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/shift-in-covid-19-messaging-expected-in-windsor-essex-by-local-health-unit-1.16806124
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/shift-in-covid-19-messaging-expected-in-windsor-essex-by-local-health-unit-1.16806124
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/case-counts-no-longer-a-reliable-measure-of-covid-burden-says-top-doctor
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/case-counts-no-longer-a-reliable-measure-of-covid-burden-says-top-doctor
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/29/health-unit-shifting-case-counts-key-indicator-covid-19-messaging/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/12/29/health-unit-shifting-case-counts-key-indicator-covid-19-messaging/
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-considering-new-metrics-for-covid-19-1.5722521
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/wechu-covid19-dec29-1.6185343
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wechu-reports-993-new-covid-19-cases-in-windsor-essex-since-last-thursday-1.16805643
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wechu-reports-993-new-covid-19-cases-in-windsor-essex-since-last-thursday-1.16805643
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/993-new-cases-of-covid-19-reported-in-windsor-essex-since-dec-23-1.5722150
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/993-new-cases-of-covid-19-reported-in-windsor-essex-since-dec-23-1.5722150
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-essex-acting-medical-officer-of-health-hopes-to-see-a-return-to-the-classroom-1.5722429
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-essex-acting-medical-officer-of-health-hopes-to-see-a-return-to-the-classroom-1.5722429


Health unit lists two more school, child care outbreaks 
AM800, Dec. 29, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-lists-two-more-school-child-care-
outbreaks-1.16805684 
 
Plans are in the works for a new $2.7M medical centre on Windsor’s east side 
Windsor Star, Dec. 29, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/plans-are-in-the-works-for-a-new-2-7-million-
medical-centre-on-windsors-east-side 
 
 
 
 

  

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-lists-two-more-school-child-care-outbreaks-1.16805684
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-lists-two-more-school-child-care-outbreaks-1.16805684
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/plans-are-in-the-works-for-a-new-2-7-million-medical-centre-on-windsors-east-side
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/plans-are-in-the-works-for-a-new-2-7-million-medical-centre-on-windsors-east-side


Web and Social Media Analytics - December 2021  

MyWRH:   

Users: 4,561 users this month, +140 

Average view time: 6 m 21 s  

 

How do people access the site?  

Desktop: 90%  

Mobile: 9.3% 

Tablet: .7% 

 

Most Viewed pages:  

1. Home Page – 19,480 views 
2. Career Opportunities –8,371 views 
3. Current Postings –8,006 views 
4. Employee Corner – 4,379 views 
5. Marketplace -3,632 
6. Physician On Call Schedule – 2,885 
7. Departments and Services – 2,793 
8. News and Announcements – 2,650 

WEB:  

Users: 62,035 users this month,  +13.3 %  

New Users: 65.6.7% 

Average view time: 1 m 46s 

  

Top Languages other than English:  

1 ) Chinese (zh.cn) – 149 users or  .24% of all users 

2) French  -  136, .2 % of all users 

  

How do people access the site?  

Mobile: 62.1%  

Desktop: 35.8% 

Tablet:  3.5% 

 

Top pages:  

1. Home Page – 33,426 views, 
2. COVID Assessment Centre –23,878 views 
3. coronavirus - 18,779 
4. Emergency Wait times –15,568 views 
5. Vaccination Centres – 7,871 views 
6. Puma – 3,870 
7. Contact Us – 3,372 

http://zh.cn/


8. Careers –3,366 views 
9. COVID Visitation –2, 828 views 

 

YOUTUBE:  

Views: 6,332 views (+48,000 more than average)  

Watch Time: 448 hours (above average)  

Subscribers: 700, +19 

 

Top videos internal: 

1. COVID-19 Update – Dec. 17  - 426 
2. Ugly Sweater Contest - 418 
3. Town Hall Dec. 7 – 366 
4. Guidelines for Basic Adult Neurological Observation– 322  
5. Demonstrating Compassion - 273 

Top videos external:  

1. Getting your Child Vaccinated – HR Promotion – 2,214 
2. Using quick Dams to prevent flooding at WRH – 271 
3. President and CEO Report–131  
4. Birthing Centre Tour -78 
5. Open Board Meeting Dec. 9 - 61 

FACEBOOK: 10,298  followers +59             

154,209 monthly reach, +97% 

25,839 people “engaged” on our site - commented or liked our posts this month, -35% 

17,983 videos viewed, -7% 

  

Top Posts:  

 
1. Local Partners warn of increased system capacity pressure– 10,975  people reached, 225 

reactions 
2. First 5-11 vaccination -6,224 people reached, 594 reactions           
3. Dr. malus quote Re: vaccinated people who become critically ill –5,563 people reached, 286 

reactions 
4. Nurse receives Certificate of Commendation from EMS – 4,724 people reached, 217 reactions 
5. VIDEO: Children’s Vaccination Centre  – 4,597 people reached, 99 reactions 

INSTAGRAM – Followers: 3,692, +79 

Reach: 25,989, +157.1% 

Engagement –852, -6% 

 

Top Posts:  



1. First 5-11 vaccination - 2,627 reached, 411 liked 
2. WPS message re: protests at vaccination centres -2,240 reached, 187 liked 
3. Show your stripes campaign- 2,099 reached, 76 liked 
4. Nurse receives Certificate of Commendation from EMS - 1,995 reached, 138 liked 
5. Vaccination Centre open for 5 – 11  - 1,516 liked, 160 viewed  

TWITTER:  

Followers: 5,156, +85 this month 

Impressions: 490,000, +165% 

Tweets: 54, +3.8% 

 

Trending topics:                                                                                                 

1. First 5-11 vaccination – 91,490 impressions, 2,463 engagements 
2. 50+? Book your booster– 69,687 impressions, 1,117 engagements 
3. Book booster before it gets busy– 17,440 impressions, 170 engagements 
4. New openings for  3rd shot – 9,771 impressions, 302 engagements 
5. It is CRITCAL to get your booster –9,662 impressions, 662 engagements 

 


	220106 Open Agenda
	Tab Template A
	12092021 Open Board minutes
	Tab Template B
	Financial Presentation - November 2021 Results (for January 2022 Meeting)
	Tab Template C
	FAR General Meeting
	Tab Template D
	Media Report to the Board of Directors Dec 2021



